CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - MAY 16, 2023

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on May 16, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. in the School Board
Meeting Room at the Richardson ISD Administration Building, 400 S. Greenville Avenue,
Richardson, Texas 75081.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bryan Marsh, Chairman
Kenneth Southard, Vice Chairman
Michael Keller, Commissioner
Gary Beach, Commissioner
Byron Purdy, Commissioner
Nate Roberts, Commissioner
Joe Costantino, Commissioner

MEMBERS ABSENT: Gwen Walraven, Commissioner
Sebrena Bohnsack, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Director — Development Services
Chris Shacklett, Asst. Director of Development Svcs. — Planning
Derica Peters, Senior Planner
Connie Ellwood, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff
regarding staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken.

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

1. Approval of Minutes of the regular business meeting of April 4, 2023.

Motion: Chairman Marsh made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; Seconded
by Vice Chairman Southard. Motion passed 7-0.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

2. Zoning File 23-07 — Special Permit — Massage Establishment: Consider and act on a request
for approval of a Special Permit for a massage establishment located within an existing
building on a 1.82-acre lot currently zoned LR-M(2) Local Retail, located at 1551 E. Spring
Valley Road, on the north side of Spring Valley Road, west of St. Johns Drive. Property
Owner: Long T. Ly, TMTC Investments Inc. Staff: Derica Peters.

Ms. Peters began by stating Zoning File 23-07 was a request for a Special Permit for a massage
establishment at 1551 E. Spring Valley Road. The subject site was located on the north side of
E. Spring Valley Road and west of St. Johns Drive. The site was zoned LR-M(2) Local Retail



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
May 16, 2023 2

and was adjacent to a neighboring retail development. Properties to the east and south were
developed as single-family residential.

The property was 1.82 acres and was developed with a 23,143-square foot single-story multi-
tenant retail building. The applicant had proposed to occupy a 1,293-square foot lease space in
this building. The site provided 118 parking spaces which was adequate parking. There were
no proposed exterior modifications. She presented site photos of the existing building and
proposed lease space. There was still signage on the building for a previous massage
establishment that operated from 2011 through 2021.

Ms. Peters stated in 2016, the City amended the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (CZO) to
require massage establishments to obtain a Special Permit prior to receiving a certificate of
occupancy (CO). The previous tenant was allowed to operate as a non-conforming use since
they received their CO in 2011. The previous tenant continued to operate until early 2021 when
it was found the massage establishment was in violation of their CO as they were operating an
illegal massage establishment; therefore, their CO was revoked. When the CO was revoked,
the non-conforming rights associated with the location were still valid for six (6) months, and
anew massage establishment could have acquired a CO within six (6) months of the revocation
without approval of a Special Permit; however, those rights were deemed to be abandoned
since a CO was not acquired by a new tenant within the 6-month timeframe.

The applicant, Ms. Yexiang Li, proposed to open a new massage establishment at the subject
location. During the revocation hearings, the applicant stated she entered into an agreement
with the former lease holder to take over the lease to open her own massage establishment. She
explained she did not open for business at that time because she did not have funding for
interior renovations, and she was also unaware of the CO process. Since that time, she had
been working as a massage therapist in the City of Garland. She was now requesting a Special
Permit to open her massage establishment at the subject location.

Ms. Li has stated she would be the only massage therapist on staff, and her hours of operation
would be limited to 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 12:00 p.m. to 7:00
p.m. Saturday and Sunday. She stated she offered traditional foot and body massage.

Ms. Peters continued by stating should the CPC consider the request, the following conditions
had been recommended:

- The Special Permit would be limited to Ms. Li, provided however one (1) additional
licensed massage therapist would be allowed to perform services.

- The Special Permit would be limited to the 1,293-square foot lease space as shown on the
Concept Plan.

- The Special Permit would expire or terminate in accordance with the CZO.

- A Certificate of Occupancy must be obtained in accordance with the CZO.

- The hours of operation would be limited to 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. Monday through Friday
and 12:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. Saturday and Sunday.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
May 16, 2023 3

Ms. Peters concluded her presentation stating notices were mailed and posted concerning this
public hearing and that no correspondence had been received in favor or in opposition to the
request. She then made herself available for questions.

Vice Chairman Southard asked for clarification regarding the condition allowing an additional
massage therapist. Could that be used to have two (2) massages therapists working in tandem?

Mr. Shacklett responded it would allow two (2) therapists working at the same time as written.
He believed the intent was for an additional employee when Ms. Li was not working. The
Commission could modify the request to clarify their intent if they chose to do so.

Vice Chairman Southard stated that the lease space was large enough to accommodate two (2)
employees.

Ms. Peters stated staff’s understanding was the establishment had three (3) rooms so it could
accommodate two (2) massage therapists; however, as mentioned previously, the applicant’s
intent was to be the only massage therapist.

Chairman Marsh asked if there were any restrictions related to this type of use near schools.

Ms. Peters responded there was nothing in the City Code of Ordinances restricting the location
near schools. The applicant was licensed with the State of Texas as a licensed massage therapist
and the location itself was licensed through the State of Texas.

With no further discussion among the Commission or questions for staff, Chairman Marsh
asked the applicant to come forward on behalf of the request.

Ms. Yexiang Li, 3817 Clearwood Drive, Garland, Texas, the applicant, came forward along
with Mr. Rusty Chiu, 9915 Corinth Lane, Frisco, Texas as her translator. Mr. Chiu stated that
Ms. Li signed a lease in April 2021. After signing the lease, she was told she would be required
to obtain a CO which was difficult. She fell ill with COVID two (2) times. She paid rent for
approximately six (6) months but then stopped due to her inability to work. Mr. Long, the
property owner, had been very understanding and tried to work with Ms. Li. She was now
requesting approval of a Special Permit.

Mr. Long T. Ly, P.O. Box 261601, Plano, Texas, property owner, came forward to state that
he was present to support Ms. Li’s request. He stated at the time the lease was signed, Ms. Li
paid rent and was attempting to remodel the interior of the location; however, she did not have
adequate funding. Several months of free rent were provided to Ms. Li to provide time to secure
funding for the remodel. She then became ill multiple times and was not able to work. She now
feels better and is interested in opening the massage establishment.

Chairman Marsh asked the applicant and property owner if they were aware of the unlawful
activities taking place with the prior massage establishment that caused them to lose their CO.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
May 16, 2023 4

Mr. Ly responded that he did receive a letter from the City notifying him of the illegal massage
services. He immediately warned the previous tenant that the massage services had to be
conducted in an appropriate and legal manner. He then received a second letter from the City
informing him that the CO was being revoked. He stated he released the tenant immediately.
Prior to signing a lease with Ms. Li, a background check and references were verified. It was
also discussed that the massage establishment would be required to operate in a lawful manner.

Chairman Marsh asked if the applicant was aware of unlawful activities of the prior tenant.
Ms. Li responded no and that she did not know the previous tenant.

Chairman Marsh asked if this was an assignment of the existing lease or was it a new lease.
Mr. Ly stated it was a new lease.

Chairman Marsh asked how many months of past due rent was owed. Also, could confirmation
be provided that the current lease was a 3-year lease that went through the end of March 2024.

Mr. Ly responded Ms. Li was behind on rent by approximately fourteen (14) months. He also
confirmed the lease was up at the end of March 2024.

Chairman Marsh inquired if Ms. Li was able to receive approval of the Special Permit and
acquired the CO, how would the past due rent be handled.

Mr. Ly stated he would discuss the issue with the landlord and suggest that the past due rent
be waived, and that Ms. Li would begin paying rent after receiving the CO.

Vice Chairman Southard expressed concern that Ms. Li was told that obtaining the CO would
be difficult. He asked if she was told this by someone from the City or someone else in the
community.

Mr. Chiu commented that he had worked with Building Inspection in the past and was made
aware of the new ordinance regarding massage establishments. Mr. Chiu was not clear about
the requirements and had a general impression that the City of Richardson was more stringent
with the process. Therefore, it would be difficult to obtain a CO for certain businesses such as
massage establishments. Also, in speaking with Ms. Li, her impression was the same. This
caused her discouragement to proactively move forward as well as the issues with her health.

Vice Chairman Southard asked Mr. Chiu if he had been advising Ms. Li since the beginning
of the process, and if there were any discussions with any of the City departments prior to
paying the application fee and regarding his impression of the City being difficult. Did he have
similar experiences with other cities related to application fees.

Mr. Chiu responded yes and confirmed that he had expressed his opinion to Ms. Li that the
City of Richardson was difficult to work with. He confirmed he had not had discussions with



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
May 16, 2023 5

any City representatives and confirmed he had not experienced having to pay a $1,500 fee in
other cities for application fees for Special Permits.

Commissioner Purdy asked Mr. Ly if it was customary to provide remediations in the form of
lease forgiveness for all tenants or was this a special case due to Ms. Li’s circumstances.

Mr. Ly responded that he suggested to the owner to help tenants out during COVID. A 30%
discount on rent was provided for three (3) months to all tenants during COVID. For Ms. Li,
they were considering waiving the late rent because of her health issues. He also stated he did
attempt to find a new tenant without success. There were additional spaces vacant in the
building at the same time.

Chairman Marsh asked Ms. Li to describe the services that would be offered.

Mr. Chiu responded on her behalf stating she would be providing traditional foot reflexology
and body massage as well as therapeutic massage for injury.

Chairman Marsh asked for confirmation that Ms. Li would be the only massage therapist on
site. The condition presented recommended there be allowed one (1) other licensed massage
therapist. Should there be an additional therapist, would they be working at the same time with
Ms. Li or at different times.

Mr. Chiu responded on behalf of Ms. Li stating at the beginning, Ms. Li would be the only
staff member. Later, she may consider hiring a receptionist. Should business become busy, she
would consider hiring a second licensed massage therapist. She would also require the second
massage therapist to provide their massage services with the door open.

Commissioner Roberts asked Ms. Li how she would handle a patron who acts inappropriately
since she would be the only employee present.

Mr. Chiu responded on behalf of Ms. Li stating she would ask them to leave. He continued by
stating someone had mentioned the possibility of having a panic button; however, he had not
discussed that with Ms. Li. Also, a receptionist could help alleviate this issue.

Commissioner Costantino asked how long Ms. Li had been a licensed massage therapist and
where.

Mr. Chiu on behalf of Ms. Li, responded she had been a licensed massage therapist since 2016
in Plano, Richardson, and Garland.

Commissioner Costantino asked if Ms. Li had developed ways to handle threats of security or
inappropriate behaviors. Had she dealt with circumstances such as this before and was she
comfortable dealing with them again?

Mr. Chiu responded that Ms. Li confirmed she had encountered situations of inappropriate
behavior. She stated she would step back and asked the customer to leave the premises.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
May 16, 2023 6

Chairman Marsh asked what the State of Texas looked at when issuing a license to a massage
therapist as well as a business.

Mr. Chiu stated Ms. Li’s response was that a personal massage therapist license was renewable
every two (2) years. Every renewal required twelve (12) hours of continuing education classes,
including human trafficking prevention training every two (2) years.

Chairman Marsh asked how advertising or marketing for new clients would be handled.
Mr. Chiu responded that Ms. Li stated it would be through Google or referrals.

Commissioner Purdy asked what other services would be provided by a potential receptionist,
such as translation or security.

Mr. Chiu responded that Ms. Li knows basic English. There would be very little verbal
communication aside from basic English between the therapist and the client such as how long
and what type of massage was requested. No translation services would be provided.

Mr. Shacklett commented there were also requirements for background checks through the
State of Texas as part of the licensing process.

Chairman Marsh commented to Mr. Ly that the case was presented to the Commission as a
potential lawsuit for default on a loan should Ms. Li be unable to receive approval for the
Special Permit and the CO to open her business to meet her rent obligation. Was it correct that
if she was unable to receive approval for both, that the property owner would pursue a
judgement against Ms. Li for default on the lease?

Mr. Ly responded that he could not confirm or deny, but the owner might pursue a legal
judgement against Ms. Li. He believed the property owner would potentially come up with a
settlement if they did not file a lawsuit. The owner may also ask to find a replacement tenant.

Chairman Marsh asked Ms. Li if she had ever defaulted on a lease before and had she ever had
a lease in her name. Was the current lease in her name or in a corporation name?

Mr. Chiu responded that Ms. Li stated she had not defaulted on a lease before. She also stated
she had a lease in her name approximately eight (8) years ago, and the current lease was in her
name.

Mr. Ly stated that it was his hope that the request would be approved as it affected the property
owner. If the building continued to be vacant, they would not be able to pay property taxes
which were approximately $50,000 annually.

With no further questions of the applicant, Chairman Marsh opened the public hearing and
asked that if anyone would like to come forward to speak in favor or opposition to the request.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
May 16, 2023 7

Seeing none, Chairman Marsh made a motion to close the public hearing, seconded by
Commissioner Beach. Motion passed 7-0.

Chairman Marsh asked for further deliberation or a recommendation from the Commission.

Commissioner Costantino commented the location was a massage establishment prior, and the
applicant had no association with the former business. Since background checks were
conducted and since the applicant had seven (7) years of experience, he was in favor of the
request.

Commissioner Roberts commented he was a bit concerned regarding her safety; however, he
did concur with Commissioner Costantino’s comments and would support the request.

Chairman Marsh commented several cases on massage establishments that have come before
the Commission had been related to an unlawful use by prior operators that resulted in the loss
of their CO. There was a bit of a pattern with these types of establishments, not to suggest that
was the case for the current applicant or with every massage establishment. There were some
concerns regarding the location, such as being next to a karate school and near a high school.
He did believe the applicant would operate a lawful establishment and would secure the
appropriate licenses. It was a hardship with the current situation of not fully understanding
what was required to operate this type of business coupled with the applicant becoming ill
multiple times, which could potentially lead to the applicant being sued for signing a lease
agreement that she had not been able to fulfill. He hoped the property owner would be more
lenient with her or else it could result in damages to her personally. For those reasons, he leaned
toward recommending approval. Additionally, this request would go before the City Council,
and he did not want to put her in a position where she would be required to receive a super-
majority vote from the Council should the CPC deny the request. He might have thought
differently if it were not for the hardship reasons he mentioned. For those reasons, he could
support the request.

Commissioner Roberts commented he felt the applicant had represented exactly what the
intended use would be. Even with the proximity of the schools, he did not foresee issues if the
establishment operated lawfully.

Chairman Marsh added that he felt there were needs in the community for these types of
services. He felt the track record that had been seen over the last couple of cases raised some
concern and affected the overall perception of the use. The identity that this type of
establishment gave to a community might not be the most desirable, but there were valid needs
for this type of service.

Commissioner Beach commented from his perspective, until proven otherwise, the applicant
had the appropriate licenses, clear background checks and experience. He stated it was
approved for the location previously, therefore, he found the location appropriate.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
May 16, 2023 8

Motion: Commissioner Beach made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning 23-07
— Special Permit — Massage Establishment. Seconded by Commissioner
Costantino. Motion Passed 7-0.

ADJOURN
With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Marsh adjourned the regular
business meeting at 7:45 p.m.

Bryan Marsh, Chairman





